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INDEPENI NT Al "OR’S  EPORT

To the Mcembers of Kids Clinic India Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Kids Clinic India Private Limited (hereinalter referred to as “the
lolding Company™) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group™) comprising of the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021. the Consolidated Statement of Profit and [Loss, including Other Comprehensive Income.
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. including a summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information (hereinafier
referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of report of
other auditor on separate financial statements and on the other financial information of the subsidiary. the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the consolidated state of aflairs of the Group as
at March 31. 2021, their consolidated loss including other comprehensive income. their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs). as specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the consolidated tinancial statements™ section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the “Code of Ethics’
issucd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the cthical requirements that are relevant o our audit of the
consolidated linancial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder. and we have fulfilled our other cthical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Em phasis of Matter

We draw your attention to Note 2.4 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements. which desceribes the management’s evaluation
of Covid-19 impact on the [uture business operations and future cash Tows of the Group. In view of the uncertain cconomic conditions.
the management's evaluation of the impact on the subsequent periods is highly dependent upon conditions as they evolve. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s R ort Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Dircctors™ Report. but does not include the consolidated [inancial statements and our auditor’s report thercon.

Our opinion on the consolidated (inancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form ol assurance
conclusion thercon.

In conncction with our audit of the consolidated financial statcments, our responsibility is to recad the other information and. in doing so.
consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial stalements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. I, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information. we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

esponsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company s Board of Directors arc responsible Tor the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated (inancial position. consolidated [inancial
performance including other comprehensive income. consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally aceepted in India. including the Indian Accounting  Standards (Ind AS) specified
under scetion 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
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The respective Board of Directors of the companics included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions ol the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irrcgularitics: sclection and application ol appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent: and the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls. that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view and arc free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. which have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company. as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companics included in the Group are responsible
for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing., as applicable. matiers related (o going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Dircetors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the (inancial reporting
process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are (ree from material
misstatement. whether due (o fraud or error. and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists isstatements can arisc from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expeceted to influence the economic decisions ol users taken on (he basis of these Consolidated financial statements.

As part ol an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements, whether duc to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain audit evidence that is sufticient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not deteeting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for onc resulting {rom crror, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant (o the audit in order to design audit procedures that arc appropriate in the
circumstances. Under scction 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectivencss of
such controls.

*  DLvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and. based on the audit evidence
obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group 1o continue as a going concern. [ we conclude that a material uncertainty cxists. we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, i’ such disclosures are inadequate. to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our auditor’s report. Tlowever. future cvents
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Dvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated financial statements. including the disclosures. and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achicves f(air
presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entity or business activities within the Group
of which we arc the independent auditors. to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction. supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entity included in the consolidated linancial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entity included in the consolidated financial statements. which
has been audited by other auditor. such other auditor remain responsible for the direction. supervision and performance of the audits
carricd out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company of which we are the independent auditors regarding. among
other matters. the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit lindings. including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identily during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable. related safeguards.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of one subsidiary. whose (inancial statements include
total asscts of Rs 1.101.75 lakhs as at March 31, 2021, and total revenues of Rs 1.462.64 lakhs and net cash outflows of Rs 19.24 lakhs for
the year ended on that date. These financial statements and other financial information have been audited by other auditor, which linancial
statements, other financial information and auditor™s reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated
{inancial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary. and our report in terms of
sub-scctions (3) of Section 143 of the Act. in so far as it relates (o the subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of such other auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below., is not modified
in respect of the above matter with respect to our refiance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Scction 143(3) of the Act. based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditor on separate linancial
statements and the other {inancial information of subsidiary. as noted in the ~other matter™ paragraph we report. to the extent applicable,
that:

(a)  We/the other auditor whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and beliel were neeessary lor the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements:

(b)  In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidation of the linancial
statements have been kept so far as it appears [rom our examination of those books and report of the other auditor:

(¢)  The Consolidated Balance Sheet. the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income. the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books ol account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

(d)  In our opinion. the atoresaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act. read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015. as amended:

(¢)  The matter described in Emphasis of Matter paragraph above, in our opinion. may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the
Group:

(N On the basis of the written representations received trom the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Dircctors of the Holding Company and the report ot the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section
139 of the Act. of its subsidiary company. nonc of the directors of the Group’s companies is disqualilied as on March 31. 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(g)  With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company. refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 1 to this report. This report does not include Report
on the internal financial controls with reference 10 the financial statements of the subsidiary company. since in the opinion of the
other auditor. the said report on internal financial controls is not applicable to the subsidiary company, basis the exemption available
to the subsidiary company under MCA notification no. G.S.R. 583(1:) dated June 13. 2017 on reporting on internal financial controls:

(h)  The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable (o the Holding Company and its subsidiary company
for the year ended March 31, 2021:
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(i) With respect o the other matters 1o be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule ['1 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules. 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given (o us
and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditor on separate linancial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiary company. as noted in the “Other matter” paragraph:

L The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated financial position in its consolidated financial
statements — Refer Note 30(b) to the consolidated financial statements:

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts {or which there were any provision for
matcrial foresceable losses:
ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding

Company and its subsidiary company during the year ended March 31, 2021.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICATFine ™ 7 Number: 101049W/E300004
per Sudh n
Partner i

Membership Number: 213157
UDIN: 21213157TAAAABASS34 e

Place: Bengaluru
Date: July 27. 2021
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ANl X E1 D" C{INDEPE! NT AUDITOR’S REPC T OF EVEN DATE ON THE ONSOLIDA™ ) VANCIAL
STATE NTS OF KIDS CLINIC INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of Kids Clinic India Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™) as of March 31. 2021, in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company for the year ended on that date. This report does not include Report on the internal financial controls
with reference to the financial statements of the subsidiary company. since in the opinion of the other auditor. the said report on internal
financial controls is not applicable to the subsidiary company. basis the exemption available to the subsidiary company under MCA
notification no. G.S.R. 583(k) dated Junc 13, 2017 on reporting on internal financial controls.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Co  ols

The Board of Directors of the IHolding Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal {inancial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note™) issuc vy the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAT"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adcquate internal financial controls that were operating cffectively for ensuring the orderly and cfficient conduct of its business. including
adherence o the Holding Company s policics. the saleguarding ol its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors. 2 accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal {inancial controls with reference 1o these consolidated
{inancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. to the extent applicable o an audit of internal financial controls and. both issued by the ICAL
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with cthical requirements and plan and perform the audit (o obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these consolidated financial statements was
cstablished and maintained and if such controls operated elfectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
these consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to these
consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these consolidated
financial statements. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and cvaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected denend on the auditor’s judgement. including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. + :ther due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis [or our audit opinion on the internal
financial controls with reference to these consolidated financial statements.

Meaning o 1ternal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A Holding Company's internal financial control with reference (o these consolidated financial statements is a process designed (o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of these consolidated financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Tlolding Company's internal financial control with
reference to these consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that. in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Tolding Company: (2) provide
reasonablc assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary (o permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Holding Company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Holding Company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition. usc. or disposition of the [Holding Company's asscts that could have a material
cffect on the consolidated financial statements.
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Inherent imitations of iternal Financi  Zontrols with reference to these Consolidatec  nancial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these consolidated financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls. material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to these consolidated financial statements to
future periods arc subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to these consolidated (inancial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company has. in all ma  al respects. an adequate internal financial controls with reference (o these
consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to these consolidated financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the THolding
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidanee Nofte issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LL.P
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Fi~ ™ "+ "y Number: 101049W/E300004

])Cl'suduu numar sain
Partner
Membership Number: 213157

UDIN: 21213157TAAAABASS534

I

Place: Bengaluru
Date: July 27. 2021



Kids Clinic India Private Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021
{All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Notes March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
k4 z
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 64,098.63 51.492.07
Capital work-in-progress 4 131.23 957.09
Intangible assets 5 159.22 21547
Intangible assets under development 6 - -
Goodwill 33.66 53.66
Financial assets
Loans 8 224514 1,846.98
Other non-current financial assets 9 1.081.58 1,081.68
Deferred tax assets (net) 21 4.246.90 424512
Other non-current assets 10 484.18 457.17
Assets for current tax (net) 90925 915.66
73,409.79 61,264.90
Current assets
Inventories 11 808.70 115415
Financial assets
[nvestments 7 604.75 150.59
Loans 8 25.29 3542
Trade receivables 1.306.42 1,053.99
Cash and cash equivalents 506.96 307.84
Other current financial assets 9 293.67 339.38
Other current assets 10 371.80 329.85
Assets for current tax (net) - 1.05521
3,917.65 4,426.43
Total assets 77,327.44 05,691.33
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 14 661.86 659.39
Instruments entirely equity in nature 14 6.738.41 6,738.41
Other equity 15
Attributable to equity holders of the parent 12,252.88 15,605.69
Non-Controlling Interests 162.71 120.67
19,815.86 23,124.16
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 3,531.02 357213
Other non-current tinancial liabilities 17 41.427.37 28,161.33
Long term provisions 20 13.73 9.49
44,972.12 31,742.95
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 168.84 661.97
Trade payables 18
-Total outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises 9.56 14.03
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 4,975.01 3,966.36
Other current financial liabilities 17 4,827.68 4,033.22
Other current labilities 19 1.247.04 1,107.38
Short term provisions 20 1,311.33 1.041.26
12,539.46 10,824.22
Total equity and liabilities 77,327.44 65,691.33
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the boa s of
Chartered Accountants 2L
ICAI Fir number: 101049W/E300( P
an KOnIt via
per Sudl in . Director Managing Director
Partner DIN No: 0250103+

Membership no.; 213157

Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru
Date: July 27, 2021

Place: Bengaluru
Date: Julv 27, 2021

Sandeep Bardia
Chief Financial Officer



Kids Clinic India Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of profit and loss for the vear ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

[RLTITY

a — Z k4

Income
Revenue from operations 22 55.458.69 31,630.27
Other income 23 1,263.75 967.82
Total income (i) 56,722.44 52,598.09
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 24 7,668.30 6,776.69
Employee benefits expense 25 11,215.60 10,108.75
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 7.891.25 737343
Finance costs 27 4,842.03 476441
Other expenses 28 2892937 27.556.82
Total expenses (ii) 60,54« == 56,580.10
Profit/ (Loss) before tax [(iii) = (i) - (ii}] (3,824.11) (3,982.01)
Tax expense 21
Current tax 3513 1534
Deferred tax (5.78) (687.45)
Total tax expense (iv) 29.35 (672.11)
Profit/ (Loss) for the year [(v) = (iii) - (iv)] (3,853.46) (3,309.90)
Other comprehensive income
Items not to be reclassitied to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benetit plans 13.69 (26.69)

[ncome tax relating to above (4.00) 7.76
Other comprehensive income ('OCT") (vi) 9.69 (18.93)
Total comprehensive income for the year [(vii) = (v) + (vi)]
(comprising Profit/(Loss) and OCI for the year) (3,843.77) (3,328.83)
Profit/ (Loss) for the year
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent (3,893.53) (3,331.19)

Non-controlling interests 42.07 21.29
Other comprehensive income
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 9.72 (18.86)

Non-controlling interests (0.03) (0.07)
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent (3,885.81) {3,350.05)

Non-controlling interests 42.04 21.22
Earnings/(Loss) per equity share 29
[nominal value of share 2 [0 (March 31, 2020: T 10}]

Basic and diluted (2 per share) (18.40) (15.73)
Summary of signiticant accounting policies 2.2
The accompanving notes are an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batlibei & Associates LLP For and on behalt of the boa ors of
Chartered Accountants B Nt Y RS |
1CATT number: 101 -

an Rohit MA

per Su in Director Managing Director
Partnei DIN No: 02501034

Membership no.: 213157

Place: Bengaluru
Date: July 27, 2021

March 31, 2021

March o1, 2020

Place: Bengaluru
Date: July 27,2021

Sanaeep bardm
Chief Financial Otticer



Kids Clinic India Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amouants in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital:

No. in Lakhs

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital Notes k4
Equity shares of Z10 each: 4
As at April 01,2019 65.94 659.39
Changes during the year - -
As at March 31, 2020 65.94 639.39
Issued during the year 2.47 2.47
As at March 31, 2021 68.41 661.86
B. Instruments entirely in the nature of equity 14
Non-cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares 'NCCCPS')
As at April 01, 2019 146.44 6,738 41
Changes during the year
As at March 31, 2020 146.44 6,738.41
Changes during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 146.44 6,738.41
C. Other equity
(refer note 13) Ed
Attributable to the Equity holders of the parent Non -
Other Reserves and surplus controlling
contri- Share based . . o ] Interests Total
butions by payment (P;\ener‘('ll Secur‘mes Retal'ned Sub total
owners reserves eserve premium earnings
As at April 01, 2019 - 278.36 3.68 41,355.46  (22,790.67)  18,846.83 99.45 18,946.28
Profit/ (Loss) for the vear - - - - (3,331.19)  (3331.19) 21.29 (3.309.90)
Other comprehensive income - - - - (18.86) (18.86) (0.07) (18.93)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (3,350.05) (3,350.05) 21.22 (3,328.83)
Compensation expense for share options granted - 108.91 - - - 108.91 - 108.91
As at March 31,2020 - 387.27 3.68 41,355.46  (26,140.72)  15,605.69 120.67 15,726.36
Profit/ (Loss) for the year - - - - (3,895.53)  (3.895.53) 42.07 (3,833.46)
Other comprehensive income - - - - 9.72 9.72 (0.03) 9.69
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (3,885.81) (3,885.81) 42.04 (3,843.77)
Other contribution by owners 424.63 - - - - 424.63 - 424,63
Compensation expense for share options granted - 108.37 - - 108.37 - 108.37
Share options lapsed during the vear - (32.97) 32.97 - - - - -
¢ ~+«*arch 31, 2021 424.63 462.67 36.65 41,355.46  (30,026.53)  12,252.88 102,71 12,415.59
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanving notes are an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

[CALL number: [01049W/E300004
per St in
Partne

Membership no.: 213157

Place: Bengaluru
Date: Julv 27, 2021

Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru
Date: July 27, 2021

ectors ot

nun s
Managing Director
DIN No: 02501034

Sandeep Bardia
Chief Financial Officer



Kids Clinic India Private Limited

Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/ (Loss) before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit/(loss) before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation and amortization expense

Finance costs

Interest income on bank deposits

Interest income on income tax refund

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
Liabilities no longer required written back

Net gain on sale of current investments

Fair value gain on investments at fair value through profit or loss

Loss/(protit) on sale of property, plant & equipment
Rent concessions
Share based payments expense
Provision for doubtful debts
Bad debts written oft
Capital work in progress written off’
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes
Movements in working capital :
Increase in trade payables
Increase in other financial labilities
[ncrease in other liabilities
Increase in provisions
(Increase) in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
(Increase) in loans
Decrease in other financial assets
(Increase)/decrease in other assets
Cash flow f (used in) operations
Direct taxes (patd)/refunds, net
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Notes March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
3 3
(3,824.11) (3,982.01)
7.891.25 7373.43
1,842.03 4,764.41
(57.97) (65.52)
(98.11) (0.82)
(157.13) (107.22)
(149.61) (173.40}
(17.87) (71.63)
421 (0.57)
31.52 (19.36)
(428.05) -
108.37 108.91
60.07 105.90
14.48 495
- 210.00
8,210.64 8,147.04
1,449 42 1,139.32
96.79 1.85
289.27 68.03
287.99 173.77
(347.59) (468.53)
34539 (560.22)
(230.88) (261.28)
4571 2430
(52.44) 90.82
10,094.30 8,355.12
1,026.82 (405.79)
11,121.12 7,949.33

(3,632.32)

(including capital work in progress, intangible assets under development and capital advances)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of investments in mutual funds

Proceeds trom sale of investments in mutual funds
Investments in bank deposits

Redemption of bank deposits

Interest received

Net cash flow (used in)/from investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of preference share capital(including securities premium)

Proceeds from non-current borrowings

Repayment of non-current borrowings

Payment ot principal portion of lease liabilities

Pavment of interest portion of lease liabilities

Finance costs paid (other than interest portion of lease liabilities)
Net cash flow (used in)/from financing activities (C)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ot the vear
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear

Components of cash and cash equivalents:
Balances with banks:
— In current accounts
Cash on hand
Less: Bank overdraft
Cash and cash equivalents reported in cash flow statement

Summary of significant accounting policies
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Charter H

ICATF1 number: 101049W/E300004
per Su¢ in

Partner

IMembership no.: 213157

Place: Bengaluru
Date: July 27, 2021

(2,846.90)

314 34.43
(8,151.62) (7,749.96)
7.719.54 9392.15
(1,046.65) (821.88)
1,006.42 -
194.62 -
(3,906.87) (1,992.16)
247 -
914.00 1,075.00
(1,072.29) (1,129.25)
(1,993.16) (1,822.84)
(3,514.34) (3,752.03)
(858.68) (993.29)
(6,522.00) (6,622.41)
692.25 {665.24)
(354.13) 31011
338.12 35 "
13 460.38 278.32
13 46,58 29.32
16 (168.84) (661.97)
338.12 (354.13)
2.2
13
rectors of’

Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru
Date: July 27,2021
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021
(Allamounts in Indian Rupee  khs, except as otherwise stated

2.1

2.2

Corporate information

Kids Chnic India Private Limited ('the Company’ or 'the Holding Company'} is domiciled in India and incorporated on December 15 2005, under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. The Holding Company and its subsidiary (hereinafter collectively referred to as "the Group”) are engaged in prov g services in the tield ot maternal,
child and other related health care services.

The Consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on July 27, 2021.
Basis of preparation

The consolidated tinancial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notitied under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule TII to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule 1), as applicable to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given inexc  ge for goods and
services.

The Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR’) and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs upto two decimals, ex« when othenwvise
indicated.

Changes in Accounting policies and disclosures

Amendments to Ind AS [ and Tnd AS 8: Definition of Murerial

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states, “information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide tinancial information about a specitic
reporting entity.” The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in combination with other
information, in the context of the financial statements. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the
primarv users. These amendments had no impact on the tinancial statements of, nor is there expected to be any future impact to the Group.

These amendments are applicable prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. The amendments to the definition of material are not expected to

have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendmentys to Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Renr Concessions

The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying Ind AS 116 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that
makes this election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the change under Ind
AS 116, if the change were not a lease modification. The amendments are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020.

Pursuant to the above amendment, the Group has applied the practical expedient during the vear ended March 31, 2021 in respect of concessions on rentals on account of’
COVID-19. Also refer note 31.

Summary of significant accounting policies
{(a) Principles of consolidation

i. Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash tlows ot the Holding Company with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and
expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

il. Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the Holding Company’s investment in each subsidiary and the Holding Company’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. The
manner of accounting for any related goodwill is explained below.

iii. Eliminate in tull intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting
from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in tull). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that
requires recognition in the consolidated tinancial statements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of protits and losses
resulting trom intragroup transactions.

iv. The financial statements of all subsidiaries used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Holding Company, .., vear ended on
March 31 and are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

v. Non-controlling interests in the results and equity ot subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit and loss, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and balance sheet respectively.

vi. Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any
previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration
transterred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure
the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration
transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCT and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises
the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCL After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses and tested for impairment annually.

When the Group ceases to consolidate for an investment because of a loss ot control, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrving amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an
associate or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for and reclassitied to profit
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vii. Investment in subsidiary:

The entity considered in the ~nenlideed Sanein] gatamente CORQY nra levad he]gyy:
I Name of the cc ation
Acquity Lahs Priv e

(b) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination. the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any
previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and labilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration
transterred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identitied all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure
the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration
transterred, then the gain is recognised in OCT and accumulated in equity as capital reserve.

(c) Use of estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are
based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively.

In the process of applving the accounting policies, management makes various judgements, which have signiticant effect on the amounts recognized in the tinancial
statements. The Group bases its estimates and assumptions on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

(d) Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose ot trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- [t is expected to be settled in normal operating cvele

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has evaluated and considered its
operating cycle as one year and accordingly has reclassified its assets and liabilities into current and non-current.

Deterred tax assets; Habilities are classitied as non-current assets, liabilities.
(e) Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progres:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing
costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately. This applies mainly to
components for machinery. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their
specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from its previously assessed
standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts,
are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of property, plant and equipment which take substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included
to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classitied as capital advances under other non-current
assets,

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the ditference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the income statement when the Property. plant and equipment is de-recognized.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is capitalized to the extent to which the
expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which
is neither related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement of protit and loss.

Costs of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work- in- progress.
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(f) Depreciati  n property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line method, based on the following useful lives as estimated by the management in accordance

with Schedule 1T of the Companies Act, 2013. The identified components of the assets are depreciated over their usetul lives: the remaining asset 1s depreciated over the lite
of the principal asset. The (irann hac need the following useful life to provide depreciation on its property, plant and equipment.

Categoiy ui assce Useful life (vears)

Buildings 60
Plant and machinery:

Medical equipments & accessories 13

Other plant & machinery 5
Electrical installations and equipment 10
Oftice equipment 5
Furniture & fittings 10
Computers:

End user devices 3

Servers and networks 6
Vehicles 8

Leasehold improvements/Buildings are amortized on a straight line basis over the remaining period of the lease or estimated useful life of the assets, whichever is lower.

The Group has recognised 5% of cost of assets as residual value of such assets.
p J

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, it
appropriate.

(g) Intangible assets and intangible assets under development

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure
is reflected in the statement of protit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets comprising of computer software are amortized on a straight line basis over a period of five years, which is estimated by the management to be the usetul
lite of the asset.

The residual values, usetul lives and methods of amortization of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial vear end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when asset is derecognized.

Development costs incurred on internally generated intangible assets, not ready for use are capitalized as intangible assets under development.

(h) Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Where the Group is lessee
The Group applies a single recogmtion and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

s Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e, the date the underlving asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, imitial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated usetul lives of the assets.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies stated under ~“Tmpairment™

e Lease Liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease pavments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed pavments less any lease incentives receivable and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease Habilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a moditication, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payvments (e.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the

underlying asset.

*  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.
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Where the Group is lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantiatly all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamned

Lenses are classified as finance leases when substantiallv all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Group to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under
finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

(i) Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

(j) lmpairment

A Financial assets

The Group assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and measures the required expected credit losses through
a loss allowance. The Group recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other
financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if
the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

B. Non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset 1s required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling
price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount. In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if
available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for each of the Group's cash-generating units to
which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five vears. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth vear.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and foss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining
usetul life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
It such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying
amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(k) Inventories

Inventories of pharmacy goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a First In First Qut (FIFO)
basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
(I) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price. which is the consideration, adjusted for
discounts and other credits, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer.

Goods and services tax is not received by the Group on its own account. Rather. it is tax collected on value added to the product'service by the seller on behalf of the
government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

SNale of services

Revenue from rendering of services are recognised over the period on accrual basis as per the arrangement with the customers.

Sale of goads

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer. generally on dispatch of the goods.
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Contract balances
Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transterred to the customer. If the Group performs by transterning goods or services to a customer
betore the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the eamed consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before pavment of the
consideration is due). Unbilled revenue included in other current financial assets represents revenue earned but not billed as at the reporting date.

Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of constderation is due) from the
customer. [t a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the pay 1t is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Inferest income
Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments measured at amortized cost. is recognized using the effective interest rate method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date. Dividend income is included under the head “other income™ in
the statement of profit and loss.

(m) Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currchey
Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates (“the functional
currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

Dorcign currency fransactions and balunces

(1) Initial recognition

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

(i1} Conversion

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

(111) Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

(n) Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution scheme

Retirement benefits in the form provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution pavable to the provident fund. The
Group recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. The contribution paid in excess of amount due is
recognized as an asset and the contribution due in excess of amount paid is recognized as a liability.

Defined benefir scheme

Gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, is accrued based on an independent actuarial valuation, which is done based on project unit credit method as at the balance sheet
date. The Group recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net
detined benefit liability/ (asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income. In accordance with Ind AS, re-measurement gains and losses on defined benefit plans
recognized in OCI are not to be subsequently reclassified to statement ot profit and loss. As required under Ind AS compliant Schedule 111, the Group recognizes re-
measurement gains and losses on defined benefit plans (net of tax) to retained earnings.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such
absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result ot the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the project unit credit method, made at the end ot each financial year. Actuarial gains/losses are
immediately taken to the statement ot profit and loss. The Group presents the accumulated leave liability as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an
unconditional right to deter its settlement tor twelve months after the reporting date,

{0) Income taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the vear.

Current and deterred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deterred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

1. Current income tax
Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable
income for that period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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i1. Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach, deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrving amounts for financial reporting purposes, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable protits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The Group oftsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax Habilities it and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set oft current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously, in each future period in which signiticant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

(p) Earnings per share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares (including equity shares to be issued upon conversion of a mandatorily convertible instrument)
outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a
rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation ot shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in

resources,
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/ {loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of

shares outstanding during the period are adjusted tor the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(q) Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the Hability.
When discounting is used. the increase in the provision due to the passage of time ts recognized as a finance cost.

Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

(r) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses it in the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outtlow of resources embodving economic
benefits is remote.

(s) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and Habilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or tinancial labilitv.

1. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash tlows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financtal asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solelv pavments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through proftit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial
recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through protit or loss are immediately recognized in
statement of protit and loss.

fit. Debt instruments at amortized cost

A “debt instrument” 1s measured at the amortized cost it both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specitied dates to cash tlows that are solely pavments of principal and interest {(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking futo account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the protit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.
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iv. Equity investment in subsidiaries.
Investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost. Impairment recognized, if any, is reduced from the carrying value.

v. De-recognition of tinancial asset
The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transter
qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109.

vi. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as pavables, as appropriate. The
Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts. The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification, which is described below.

vii, Financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through protit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for tr. g if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

vili. Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the etfective interest ('EIR’) method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using EIR method. For trade and other payables maturing within one vear from the
balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

ix, De-recognition of financial liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

x. Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Group uses following hierarchy and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each
reporting date.

Fair value hierarchy:

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchv, described as tollows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

P Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques tor which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

(t) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject
to an insignificant risk ot changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash tlows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts, if any, as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

(u) Share based payment

Emplovees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share based payment transactions, whereby emplovees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model and the cost is recognized,
together with a corresponding increase in share options outstanding account in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are tulfilled in
emplovee benetits expense. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a
period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employes benefits expense.

The dilutive etfect of outstanding options 15 reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.
(v) Segment accounting policies

The Group operates in one business and geographical segment i.e., healthcare services in India. Hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided under Ind-AS 108 —
Segment information with respect to the single reportable segment, other than those already provided in financial statements.
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2.3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues.
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and e ates could result
in outcomes that require 2 material adjustment to the carryving amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In the process of applving the Group’s accounting policies. management makes judgment, estimates and assumptions which have the most significant etfect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements.

The key judgment, estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date. which have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrving amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its judgments and
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
oceur. Also refer note 2.4 below regarding impact of Covid-19 pandemic.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions by management are as below:

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue primarily comprises fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital services. Services include charges for accommodation, medical professional services.
equipment, radiology, laboratory and pharmaceutical goods used in treatments given to patients. Revenue from hospital services are recognized as and when services are
performed, unless significant future uncertainties exist. The Group assess the distinct performance obligation in the contract and measures to at an amount that reflects the
consideration it expects to receive net of tax collected and remitted to Government and adjusted for discounts and concession. The Group based on contractual terms and past
experience determines the performance obligation satistaction over time.

Unbilled revenue is recorded for the service rendered where the patients are not discharged and tinal invoice is not raised for the services.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrving value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs tor disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five vears and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or signiticant future investments that will enhance the asset’s
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected tfuture cash-intlows and the
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to disclosure of fair value of investment property recorded by the Group.

Defined bencfit schemes

The cost of the defined benetit plan and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may ditfer from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate. future salary increases and mortality rates.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a detined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest
rates of government bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to
demographic changes. Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates and expected salary increase thereon.

Fuir value measurement of finuncial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial Habilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could attect the reported fair value of financial instruments,

Measurement of financial instruments af amortized cost

Financial instrument are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the etfective interest (‘EIR") method. The computation of amortized cost is sensitive to the inputs to
EIR including effective rate of interest, contractual cash flows and the expected life of the financial instrument. Changes in assumptions about these inputs could affect the
reported value of financial instruments.

Uiseful life and residual value of property, plunt and cquipment and intungible axsets

The useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are determined based on evaluation made by the management of the expected usage
of the asset, the physical wear and tear and technical or commercial obsolescence of the asset. Due to the judgments involved in such estimates the useful life and residual
value are sensitive to the actual usage in future period.

Provision for litigations and contingencies

Provision for litigations and contingencies is determined based on evaluation made by the management of the present obligation arising from past events the settlement of
which is expected to result in outflow of resources embodving economic benetits, which involves judgments around estimates the ultimate outcome of such past events and
measurement of the obligation amount. Due to judgments involved in such estimation the provision is sensitive to the actual outcome in future periods.

Deferred tux assets

The Group has recognized deferred tax asset to the extent of unabsorbed depreciation carried torward since these losses can be carried forward for indefinite period and there
is reasonable certainty that the Group would generate future profits from its operations. Basis the management’s evaluation, the Group's business projections provide
reasonable evidence that there would be taxable profits generated by the Group in future to utilise the deferred tax assets being carried in the books as at the balance sheet
date and accordingly deferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreciation has been recognised.

Determining the lease term of contracts Ciroup as lessee
The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to
be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the Jease. if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or
not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects
tts ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate
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2.4 Covid-19 Pandemic

The outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic globally and in India has caused significant disturbance and slowdown ot economic activities. Due to Covid-19 pandemic. the Group's
operations were impacted during the current vear and accordingly the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021 are adversely impacted and not
fully comparable with those of the carlier vear.

The Group has considered the possible effects that may result from the Covid-19 pandemic on the carrying value of assets including property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets, investments, receivables and deferred tax assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of this
pandemic, the Group. as at the date of the approval of these consolidated financial statements has used internal and external sources of information to assess the expected
future pertormance of the Group. The Group has performed sensitivity analvsis on the assumptions used and based on the current estimates, the Group expects that the
carrving amount of these assets, as retlected in the balance sheet as at March 31, 2021 are tully recoverable.

Further, during the vear ended March 31, 2021, the Group has incurred loss of ¥ 3,843.77 fakhs (March 31, 2020: ¥ 3.328.83 lakhs) and has accumulated losses of T
30,026.53 lakhs as at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020: T 26,140.72 lakhs). The Group is in the stabilisation phase and its ability to continue as a going concern is based on
establishing profitable operations and obtaining continuing financial support from its investors. The management has also taken various cost and profit optimization
initiatives in the succeeding tinancial year, which will further improve operating cash flows and generate operating profit in the future. Further, the Group also has unutilised
credit limit against its existing borrowings and also has total equity of T 19,815.86 lakhs as at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020: T 23,124.16 lakhs).

The Group's management has also estimated the future cash tlows tor the Group with the possible etfects that may result from the Covid-19 pandemic and does not foresee
any adverse impact in realising its assets and in meeting its labilities as and when they fall due. The actual impact of the Covid-19 pandemic may be different from that
estimated as at the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
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3 Property, plant and eaninment ;
weaseho..  Lllai Cacter v
Lease-hold improve- equipment Other Ofﬁce Furniture Comput- _. . installa-  Right of use
Land oo 5 plant & equip- N . Vehicles | Total
buildings its & . & fittings ers tions and assets
machinery ment .
('LHI") ACCesSory equipment

Cost*
At April 01, 2019 600.00  1,670.50  16,343.99  7,358.94  3,695.67 1,120.09 1,214.78 51246 30424 1,342.21 - 34,162.88
Ind AS 116 transition - - - - - - - - - - 31.715.68 31,715.08
adjustment (note 31)
Additions - - 166.18 525.30 41,40 7141 2331 5278 13879 2740 140.06 1,186.63
Disposals - - 39.36 20.29 - 6.80 - - 12807 - - 194.52
At March 31, 2020 600.00 1,670.50  16,470.81  7,863.95  3,737.07 1,184.70  1,238.09 565.24  314.96 1,369.61  31,855.74  66,870.67
Additions - - 1,001.07  1.011.52 277.71 295.83 212.38 78.20 01.57 230.06 17,29477  20,463.17
Disposals - - 7.84 101.74 9.93 297 26.04 53.67 19.69 2.65 - 224.55
At March 31, 2021 600.00 _ 1,670.50 77373 4,004 42443 589.83  356.84 1,397.02  49.150.51 87,109.29
Depreciation
At April 01, 2019 - 312.22 3,865.03  1,671.79 661.65 523.79 359.31  356.36  116.28 385.53 - 8,251.96
Charge for the year - 104.39 1.697.85 380.63 24975 21178 128.34 99 35 44 81 121.13 4.062.04 7,306.10
Disposals - - 3930 15.98 - 6.80 - - 117.31 - - 179.45
At March 31, 2020 - 416.61 5,523.52 2,242.44 911.40 728.77 487.65  455.71 43.78 506.68 +4,062.04 15,378.60
Charge for the vear - 104.42 1,738.84 638.35 266.42 [41.33 22143 150506 80.56 54.77 442531 7.821.99
Disposals - - 6.85 81.03 5.02 2.30 23.92 47.23 19.067 2.05 - 189.93
At March 31, 2021 - 521.03 7,25551  2,799.16  1.172.20 867.74 685.16  559.04 104.67 558.8¢ 8.487.35  23.010.66

Net book value
As at March 31, 2020 vuvwy  1zov.0v  10,947.29  5621.51  2.825.67 455.93 750.44  109.53  271.18 862.93  27,793.70 _ 51,492.07
As at March 31, 2021 600.00_ 1,149.47 10,208.53 597457 2.832.63 609.82 739.27 30.79  252.17 1,038.22  40.663.16  64,098.63

* On transition to Ind AS (i.e. April 01, 2015), the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all Property, plant and equipment measured as per the previous GAAP
and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of Property, plant and equipment.

Note: Refer Note 16 for details of property, plant and equipment ptedged as security for borrowings.

4 Capital work in progress 4
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
k4 k4
Opening balance 957.09 -
Add: Additions during the year 1,621.16 1,167.09
Less: Capitalised during the year (2.447.02) -
Less: Written off during the vear - (210.00)
Closing balance 131.23 957.09
5 Intangible assets 4
Computer rual
Software
Cost*
At April 01, 2019 230.84 230.84
Additions 163.3 163.30
At March 31, 2020 394.14 39414
Additions 13.01 13.01
Disposals 7.02 7.02
At March 31, 2021 400.13 414.17
Amortization
At April 01, 2019 111.33 111.33
Charge tor the vear 0 67.34
At March 31, 2020 liow/ 178.67
Charge for the vear 69.20 69.26
Disposals 7.02 7.02
At March 31, 2021 240.91 254.95
Net book value
As at March 31, 2020 215.47 215.47
As at March 31, 2021 159.22 159.22

* On transition to Ind AS (i.e. April 01, 2013), the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all Intangible assets measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of Intangible assets.

6 Intangible assets under development k4
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
4 4
Opening balance - 112.31
Add: Additions during the vear - 31.79
Less: Capitalised during the year - (144.10)

Closing balance R B

o
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7 Investments

Unquoted

A. Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Investment in mutial funds

SBI Magnum Low Duration Fund - Regular Growth
7.368.06 units of T 2.750.39 Each (March 31, 2020 : Nil)
[CICI Prudential Savings Fund - Growth

48,218.306 units of T 416.00 each (March 31, 2020 : Nil)
ICICI Prudential Ultra Short Ternm Fund - Growth

9.34371.162 units of T21.5663 each (March 31, 2020 : Nil)

Tata Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth
Nil (March 31, 2020: 4,808 units of  3,131.98 each)

Total Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss

Total Investments

a) Aggregate amount of quoted investments actively traded and market value thereot’

8 Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)

Security deposit
Loans to employees

9 Other financial assets
{(Unsecured, considered good)

Margin money deposits with banks*
Unbilled revenue

Cur-
March 31, 2021 iosseus o, 2020
¥ -
202.65 -
200.59 -
201.51
- 150.59
604 77 150.59
604.75 150.59
604.75 150.39
Nou-current . t
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March i, cvex March 31, 2020
k4 k4 k4 k4
224514 1.846.98 0.13 0.08
- - 25.16 3534
2,245.14 1,846.98 25.29 35.42
Non-current Current
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020 March 31,2021 March 31,2020
k4 k4 k4 k4
1,081.58 1,081.68 - -
- - 293.67 339.38
1,081.58 1,081.68 293.67 339.38

* Pledged against borrowings (refer note 16) and bank guarantee (refer note 30) facilities availed by the Group trom banks.

10 Other assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Advance to suppliers (refer note 32)*

Balances with statutory / governinent authorities
Prepaid expenses

Capital advances

* Includes advances to ANI Technologies Private Limited in which Holding Company's

director is a director.

11 Inventories
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Pharmacy goods

Non-current Current
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Z k4 4 £
- - 9.39 90.54
2.80 2.80 34.10 128.74
65.79 5530 1 I 110.57
415.59 399.07 - -
484.18 457.17 371.80 329.85
- - 0.07 0.37

March 31, 2021
Z

March 31, 2020

808.76

808.76
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12 Trade receivables
(nnsecured)

Trade tecejvables - consideted good (1efet note 32)¥
Trade receivables - credit iinpaired

Impairment atlowance (allowance for bad and doubttul debts)
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Total trade receivables

Note: Refer note 16 for details of trade receivables pledged as security for borrowings.

Details of provision for impairment is as below:
Balance as at beginning of the year

Add: Provision made during the vear

Balance as at end of'the year

* Includes dues from director of Acquity Labs Private Limited

13 Cash and cash equivalents

(A)

(B)_

(A+B)

March 31, 2021

[SEIVIVIE 35

March 31, 2020

1,033.99

575.84 515.77
1,882.26 1,569.76
(575.84) (515.77)
(575 (515.77)
1,306,412 L

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

I kS
315.77 409.87
60.07 105.90
575.84 S15.77

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

T k4
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 460.38 278.32
Cash on hand 46.58 29.52
506.96 307.84
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
Lease Lease (vurrelnt Interest accrued
Particulars Liabilities | Liabilities Non-cur.rent . borrowmgs but not due on Total
borrowings (including current )
(non-current)| {current) . borrowings
maturities) i

Balance as at April 01, 2019 - - 3,562.88 1,229.63 22.6¢ 4,815.17
Lease liabilities recognised on initial application ot Ind AS 30,251.88 1,822.84 - - 32.074.72
Accretion of interest 3,752.03 - - - 996.15 4,748.16
Cash inflows

Proceeds from non-current borrowings - - 1,075.00 - - 1,075.00
Cash Outtlows

Repavment of non-current borrowings - - (1,129.25) - - (1,129.25)

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (1,822.84) - - - (1,822.84)

Payvment of interest portion of lease liabilities (3,752.03) - - - - (3,752.03)

Finance costs paid (other than interest portion of lease - - - - (993.29) (993.2%)

liabilities)
Change in Bank overdraft (forming part ot cash and cash - - - 530.48 - 53048
equivalents for statement of cash tlow)
Others* (2.148.79}] 2.,148.79 63.50 (63.30) - -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 28,103.09 2,148.79 3,572.13 1,696.61 25.50 35,546.12
Additions to Lease liabilities during the vear 16,171.61 - - - - 16,171.61
Accretion of interest 3,069.38 - - - 836.38 4,825.96
Cash inflows

Proceeds from non-current borrowings - - 914.00 - - 914.00
Cash Outflows

Repayment of non-current borrowings - - (1,072.29) - - (1.072.29)

Pavment of principal portion of lease liabilities (1,993.16) - - - - (1.993.16)

Pavment of interest portion of lease liabilities (3,514.34) - - - - (3,514.34)

Finance costs paid (other than interest portion of lease - - - - (858.68) (858.08)

liabilities)
Rent concessions (refer note 31} (428.05) - - - - (428.03)
Change in Bank overdraft (forming part of cash and cash - - - (493.13) - (493.13)
equivalents for statement of cash tlow)
Others* (903.47) 903 .47 117.18 (117.18) - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 41,405.26 3,052.26 3,531.02 1,086.30 23.20 49,677 77

* Others indicate the effect of movement in reclassitication of current portion of long-term borrowings, including lease liabilities to other current financial liabilities basis the

balance repayment period.

Break up of financial assets carried at amortized cost

Loans

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets

W 53\2‘.

Notes March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
k4 k4
8 2.270.43 1,882.40
12 1,306.42 1,033.99
13 506.90 307.84
1,375.25 1.421.00
5,459.06 4,665.29
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14

wre capital

Authorised share capital
Fauin shares

95.00.000 (March 31. 2020: 95.00.000 equity shares of Z 10 each)

56.29.799 (March 31, 2020: 56.29.799) 10 %6 NCCCPS Class A ot % 10 each
39,41.989 (March 31. 2020: 39.41,989) 10 % NCCCPS Class B of 2 10 each

428212 (March 31, 2020: 4.28.212) 0.01% NCCCPS of Class Bl of % 100 each
44.00,000 (March 31. 2620: $4.00.000) 0.01% NCCCPS of Class C of T 100 each
10,43,000 (March 31, 2020: 10.43.000} 0.01% NCCCPS ot Class C1 of % 100 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital

Liquity shares - fully puid

65.93.904 (March 31, 2020: 65,93,904) equity shares of 10 each, tully paid up

Lyuity shares - purtly paid

2.47.476 (March 31, 2020: Nil) equity shares of T 10 each. T | paid up (refer note 14 (a})

Instruments entirely equity in nature*

Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Copvertible Preference Shares (NCCCPSY
56,29.799 (March 31. 2020: 36.29.799) 10% NCCCPS Class A of T 10 each
31,54.744 (March 31, 2020: 31,54,744) 10% NCCCPS Class B of T 10 each

4.28.212 (March 31, 2020: 4.28.212) 0.01% NCCCPS of Class B1 of T 100 each
43.89.540 (March 31. 2020: 43.89.540) 0.01% NCCCPS of Class C of ¥ 100 each
10,42 209 (March 31, 2020: 10.42.209) 0.01% NCCCPS of Class C1 of % 100 each

Misvns o, 2u2l

March 31, 2020

2
950.00 950.00
56298 362.98
394.20 394.20
428.21 42821
4.400.00 +4.400.00
1.043.00 1.043.00
7,778.39 8.39
639.39 65939
247 -
661.86 659.39
562.98 562.98
31547 31547
428.21 42821
4.389.54 4.389.54
1.042.21 104221
6,738.41 6,738.41

* Ag per the terms of the Shareholders agreement. it is noted that all series of NCCCPS are mandatory convertible either at the end of contract period i.e. 20 years or prior to
the IPO. The Group has no contractual obligation to pay cash nor does the holder have an option for redemption of the instrument. The conversion ratio is fixed as part of

the shareholders agreement for all NCCCPS. Further. the drag along and tag along rights are within the shareholders. the amrangements does not impact the contractual

terms with the Group and there is no contractual obligation on the Group to deliver cash or other financial asset as part of this arangement. Hence the aforesaid instruments

are classified as equity in nature.

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares

At the beginning of the year
Issued during the year *
Balance at the end of the year

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

No. in lakhs 2 No. in lakhs g
63.94 659.39 65.94 659.39
2.47 247 - -
68.41 661.86 65,94 659.39

* During the current year, 2.47 476 partly paid-up equity shares with tace value of T 10 per equity share and securities premium of ¥ 240 per equity share were allotted,

with called and patd-up capital of Z | per equity share.

Tustruments entirely equity in nature

NCCCPS - Class A

At the beginning of the year
Issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

NCCCPS-Class B

At the beginning of the year
Issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

NCCCPS - Class Bl

At the beginmng of the year
Issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

NCCCPS - Class C

At the beginning of the year
Issued during the year
Qutstanding at the end of the year

NCCCPS - Class C1

At the beginning of the yem
Issued during the year
Qutstanding at the end of the year

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

No. in lakhs % No. in lakhs g

36.30 562.98 56.30 562.98
56.30 202,98 56.30 562.98
31.55 31547 31.55 31547
31.55 315.47 31.55 315.47
4.28 428.21 4.28 428.21

4.27 {i0.21 4.28 e
43.89 4.389.55 43.89 4.389.35

4.389.55

042 1.042.21 1042 1.042.21
10.42 1,042.21 10.42 1,042.21
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(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Group has onty one class of equity shares having par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of fully paid up equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Group
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting, With respect to partly paid shares issued during the year. there are no voting rights and no dividend rights till such time that such shares remain partly paid-up.

In event of liquidation of the Group. the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Group. after distribution of all preferential amounts and
adjustment of unpaid calls/un-called amounts as applicable. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{c) Terms of conversion of NCCCPS

(i) NCCCPS - Class A

The Group has issued 56.29.799 NCCCPS Class A of ¥ 10 each fully paid-up at a premium of ¥ 69.93 per share. NCCCPS Class A carry non - cwmnulative dividend 4 10%
p.a. proportionately for the period for which the shares are being held. In addition. the holders of NCCCPS Class A will be entitled to full participation in any distribution
being undertaken by the Group ou full liability basis. The Group declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to
the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Each holder of NCCCPS Class A is entitled to vote at each meeting of the holders of the Equity
shares to the extent of such proportion of the total voting rights. as they would have been entitled assuming full conversion of the NCCCPS Class A.

(it) NCCCPS - Class B

The Group has issued 31,534,744 NCCCPS Class B of T 10 each tully pard-up at a premium of ¥ 315.86 per share. NCCCPS Class B carry non - cumulative dividend ‘@
10% p.a. proportionately for the period for which the shares are being held. In addition. the holders of NCCCPS Class B will be entitled to full participation in any
distribution being undertaken by the Group on tull liability basis. The Group declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, Each holder of NCCCPS Class B is entitled to vote at each meeting of the holders of
the Equity shares to the extent of such proportion of the total voting rights. as they would have been entitled assuming full conversion of the NCCCPS Class B.

(iii) NCCCPS - Class Bl

The Group has issued 4.28 212 NCCCPS Class Bl of ¥ 100 each fully paid-up at a preminm ot ¥ 297 per share. NCCCPS Class B1 carry non - cumulative dividend @
0.01% p.a. proportionately for the penod for which the shares are being held. In addition, the holders of NCCCPS Class Bl will be entitled to full participation in any
distribution being undertaken by the Group on full hability basis. The Group declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Each holder of NCCCPS Class Bl 15 entitled to vote at each meeting of the holders of
the Equity shares to the extent of such proportion of the total voting rights. as they would have been entitled assuming tull conversion of the NCCCPS Class BI.

(iv) NCCCPS - Class C

The Group has issued 43.89,540 NCCCPS Class C of ¥ 100 each tully paid-up at a premiwm of T 475.70 per share. NCCCPS Class C carry non - cumulative dividend @
0.01% p.a. proportionately for the period for which the shares are being held. In addition, the holders of NCCCPS Class € will be entitled to full participation in any
distribution being undertaken by the Group on full liability basis. The Group declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Each holder of NCCCPS Class C is entitled to vote at each meeting of the holders of
the Equity shares to the extent of such proportion of the total voting rights, as they would have been entitled assuming tull conversion ot the NCCCPS Class C.

(v) NCCCPS - Class C'i

The Group has issued 10.42.209 NCCCPS Class C'l ot ¥ 100 each fully paid-up at a premium of” ¥ 475.70 per share. NCCCPS Class ('l carry non - cumulative dividend @
0.01% p.a. proportionately for the period for which the shares are bemg held. In addition, the holders of NCCCPS Class C1 will be entitled to full participation in any
distribution being undertaken by the Group on full Hability basts. The Group declares and pays dividends in Inidian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensumg Annual General Meeting. Each holder of NCCCPS Class C 1s entitled to vote at each meeting of the holders of
the Equity shares to the extent of such proportion of the total voting rights. as they would have been entitled assuming full conversion of the NCCCPS Class C1.

Each holder of NCCCPS Class A may opt to convert its preference shares into 1 equity share of the Group at the earlier of the following events:

1) Qualified Initial Public Otfening (IPO) as acceptable to the holder.

2} At any time prior to the expiry of 20 years trom the completion dates. viz., May 27. 2011

3) Immediately upon the expiry of 20 years from the completion dates. viz., May 27, 2011

In the event of liquidation of the Group before conversion of NCCCPS Class A, the holders of NCCCPS Class A will have priority over equity shares in the repayment of
capital.

Each holder of NCCCPS Class B may opt to convert its preference shares into | equity share of the Group at the eatlier of the following events:

[) IPO as acceptable to the holder.

2) At any time prior to the expiry of 20 years from the completion dates. viz., October 25, 2013

3) Immediately upon the expiry of 20 years from the completion dates, viz.. October 25, 2013

In the event of liquidation of the Group before conversion of NCCCPS Class B. the holders of NCCCPS Class B will have priority over equity shares in the repayment of

capital.
Each holder of NCCCPS Class BI may opt to convert its preference shares into 0.84 equity share of the Group at the earlier of the following events:

1} IPO as acceptable to the holder.

2) At any time priot to the expiry of 20 years from the completion dates. viz., September 02, 2015

3) Immediately upon the expiry of 20 years from the completion dates. viz., September 02, 2015

In the event of liquidation of the Group before conversion of NCCCPS Class B1. the holders of NCCCPS Class Bl will have priority over equity shares in the repayment of
capital.

Each holder of NCCCPS Class C may opt to convert its preference shares into | equity share of the Group at the carlier of the following events:

1} IPO as acceptable to the holder.

2} At any time prior to the expiry of 20 years trom the completion dates, viz.. Decemnber 22, 2015 and December 08, 2016

3) Immediately upon the expiry of 20 years from the completion dates. viz.. December 22, 2015 and December 08. 2016

In the event of liquidation of the Group before conversion of NCCCPS Class C. the holders of NCCCPS Class € will have priority over equity shares in the repayment of
capital.

Each holder of NCCCPS Class C1 may opt to convert its preference shares into | equity share of the Group at the earlier of the following events:

1) [PO as acceptable to the holder.

2) Atany time prior to the expiry of 20 years from the completion dates. viz.. June 05, 2018

3) Imimediately upon the expiry of 20 years from the completion dates. viz.. June 05, 2018

In the event of liquidation of the Group betore conversion of NCCCPS Class CL. the holders of NCCCPS Class C1 will have priority over equity shares in the

repayment of capital.
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(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Group:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1 - shareholder No. in la] Y lding o Tt
J s of & 10 each fully paid
L v ssnore Kumar 7.39 41.54% 27.39 41.54%
Serips N Scrolls India Private Limited 27.99 42.45% 27.99 42.45%
SCI Growth Investments ]1 +4.36 6.61% +4.36 6.61%
NCCCPS Class A of T 10 each fully puid
Matrix Partners India Investments, LLC 33.20 58.96% 33.20 58.96%
True North Fund V' LLP 2310 41.04% 23.10 41.04%
NCCCPS Class B of T 10 each fully paid
SCT Growth Investments 11 23.88 75.08% 3.88 75.68%
Matrix Partners [ndia Investments, LLC 7.67 24.32% 7.67 24.32%
NCCCPS Cluss B1 of T 100 cach fidlly paid
SCT Growth Investments [I 3. 70.59% 3.02 70.59%
Matrix Partners India Investments, LLC 1.26 29.41% 1.26 29.41%
NCCCPS Class C of T 1) each fully paid
Indium V (Mauritius) Holdings Limited 2171 49.47% 21.71 19.47%
True North Fund V LLP 22.18 50.53% 22.18 30.53%
NCCCPS Class C1 of T 100 each fully paid
True North Fund V LLP 10.42 100.00% 10.42 100.00%

(e) Shares reserved for issue under options

(1) The Group issued stock options to employees. For details of shares reserved for issue under the Employee Stock Option Plan ("ESOP"} and Associate Stock Option Plan
{"ASOP"} of the Group. refer note 34.

(i1) For details of shares reserved for issue on conversion of NCCCPS. refer note 14(¢) regarding tenns of conversion of NCCCPS.

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
k4 k4

Other equity

Securities premium (A} 41,3535.46 41,355.46

Note: Secunities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Shared based payment

Balance at the beginning ot the year 387.27 278.36
Add: Compensation expense for options granted during the year 108.37 108.91
Less: Transterred to general reserve on lapse of share options during the year (32.97) -

Balance at the end of the year (B) 162.67 387.27

Note: Share based payments is used to record the grant date fair value of equity-settfed share based payment transactions with employees and associates/consultants. The
amounts recorded in this account are transferred to securities premiwn upon exercise of stock options. In case of lapse. corresponding balance is transferred to general

reserve,

Other contributions by owners

Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Additions during the year 424,63 -
Balance at the end of the year {C) 424.63 -

Note: Represents other contributions by shareholders in the nature of waiver of amounts payable to them upon issuance ot equity shares during the year ended March 31,
2021

General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 3.68 3.68
Add: Amount transterred on lapse of share options during the year 32.97 -
Balance at the end of the year (D) 36.65 3.68

Note: General reserve represents appropriation of profit.

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year (206.140.72) (22,790.67)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (3.89553) (3.331.19)
Other comprehensive income for the year® 9.72 18.86)
Balance at the end of the year (E) (30,026.53) Levy 1 40.72)
Other equity - attributable to equity holders of the parent |(F) = (A)y+(B)+(C)HD)*HE)] 12,252.88 15,605.69

Non-controlling interests
Balance at the beginning of the year 120.67 9943

Profit/(Loss) for the year 42.07 21.29
Other comprehensive income for the year® B (0.03) (0.07)
Other equity - Non-controlling interests (G} 162.71 120.67
Total Other Equity [(F)HG)] 12,415.59 15,726.36

* As required under Ind AS compliant Schedule II1 the Group has recognised remeasurement gains/(losses) of defined benefit plans (net of tax) as part of retained eamings.
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Borrowings

Non-current borrowings

Termi loan
[ndian rupee term loan (secured)
From banks [Refer note (i)]
From financial institutions [Refer note (1))
Indian rupee tern loan from banks (unsecured)

Other loans
Vehicle loan (secured) [Refer note (ii)]
Loan from Director (unsecured) [Reter note (iv)]

Less: Current maturities of non-current borrowings disclosed under
the head ~Other cuwrrent financial hHabilities™ (refer note 17)

Total non-current horrowings

Current borrowings

Loan repayuble on demand
Bank overdratfts (secured) [Refer note (v)}

Total current borrowings

Note:

Effective interest rawc Maturity March 31, 2021 March 31, 2/
k4 4

7-12% 2020 - 2026 4.325.90 4.090.91
T1-14% 2020 -2021 - 368.67
13% 2021-2023 28.15 3543
4,354.05 4,495.01

7-8% 2020-2024 7843 95.76
16.00 16.00
(917.46) (1.034.64)

3,531.02 3,572.13

8-12% On demand 168.84 661.97
168.84 661.97

(1) Indian rupee loan from bank (secured) is secured by all movable. immovable and current assets of the Holding Company.

(i1} Term loan from financial institutions has been fully repaid in the current year and the same was secured by hypothecation of the equipments purchased.

(ii1y Vehicle loan is secured by hypothecation of vehicles purchased on loan.

(iv) Indian rupee loan from the director (Dr Akash Navilebasappa) of subsidiary company Acquity is an unsecured and interest free loan. The loan can be repaid anytime after

(v

obtaining a no objection certificate from the Holding Group (Kids Clinic India Private Limited) regarding such repayment.

Bank overdrafts 1s secured by all movable, immovable and current assets of the Group.

Other financial liabilities

Lease Liability (refer note 31)

Payable towards purchase of property. plant & equipment
Current maturities of non-current borrowings (note 16)
Employee benefits payable

Security deposit

Interest acerued but not due on borrowings

Trade payables

Trade payable
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
(refer note 35 for details of dues to micro and small enterpuises)

Non-Current

Current

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

k4 4 4 k4

41.405.26 28.103.09 3.052.26 2.148.79

- - 165.64 304,16

- - 917.46 1,034.64

- - 63543 386.20

22.11 58.24 33.69 133.93

- - 23.20 25.50

41,427, 28,161.33 4,827.68 4,033.22

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

- Payable to related parties (refer note 32)
- Payvable to other parties

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

2 3
9.56 14.03

307 27.21
197194 3.939.15
1,984,57 3,980.39

Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortized cost Notes March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
k4 k4
Borrowings (non-current) 16 3,531.02 3572013
Bormrowings (current) 16 168.84 661.97
Current maturities ot non-current borrowings 1 917.46 1.034.04
Trade payables 18 4.984.57 3.980.39
Other financial liabilities (excluding current maturities of non-current borrowings) 17 45.337.59 31.159.91
54,939.48 40,409.04

/O\E ‘\SO
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21

Other liabilities

Current
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
- 2
Deferred revenue 2.00 2.01
Advance from customers 819.12 702.26
Statutory dues payable 345.63 384 .36
Book overdratt 33.59 -
Others 46.64 18.75
1,247.04 1,107.38
Provisions
Non-current Current
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
4 k4 2 k4
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 33} 13.753 9.49 604.39 466.24
Provision for leave benefits 706.94 575.02
1.0 1.311.33 1,041.26
Income Tax
2) Deferred tax March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
k4 k4
Deferred tax assefs
[mpact ot unabsorbed deprectation loss carried forward +4.239.63 +.238.84
Others 9.92 6.28
Gross deferred tax assets o T
Deferred tux liuhilitiey
Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/amortization charged for financial reporting 2.65 -
Gross deferred tax habilities 2.65 -
Net deferred tax assets 4,246.90 4,245.12
Notes:
1} Amount of deferred tax assets not recognised in the balance sheet:
a} Deferred tax on unused tax losses* ) 4.029 49 4,029.49
b) Deferred tax on deductible temporary differences 1.755.23 610.93

* The unused tax tosses can be carried forward for a maximum period of eight assessment years imnediately succeeding the assessinent year in which the loss was first

computed and would expire if not utilised starting trom financial year 2023-24 to 2026-27.

2) The Taxation Laws {Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 (‘the Ordinance’) provides an option to domestic companies to pay income-tax at a lower rate of 25.17% mstead of the
normal rate ot 29.129/27.82% (as applicable to the Group). if it opts for not availing of certain specified exemnptions or incentives. The Group has made an assessment of
the impact of the Ordinance and has decided to not opt for the lower tax rate of 25.17%. Consequently. the Group has continued to measure the current and deferred taxes

at the normal rate of 29.12%./27.82%

b) Tax expenses

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31. 2021 and March 31, 2020 are:

Statement of profit and loss

Profit or loss section
Current tax
Current income tax charge
Deferred tax:
Relating to unabsorbed depreciation
Others
Income Tax expense reported in the Statement of profit or loss

OCl section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:

Income tax relating to re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans
Deferred tax charged to OCI

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets {net):

Opening balance

Deferred tax credit/(charge) during the period recognised in profit or loss
Deterred tax credit/(charge) during the period recogmised in OCI
Closing balance

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate:

Accounting profit before income tax
Income tax rate (Holding Company;Subsidiary Company')

Tax on accounting profit at statutory income tax rate
Impact due to change in tax rate

Tax effect of temporary ditferences (other than unabsorbed depreciation loss) not recogmsed
Others

Tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
k4 k4

35.13 1534
(4.01) (693.26)
(1.77) 5.81

29.35 (672.11)
4.00 (7.76)
4.00 (7.76)

March 31, cvza

March 31, 2020

2 2
4245.12 354991
578 68745
(4.00) 7.76
4,246.90 1245.12

March 31, 2021
kd

March 31, 2020
k4

(3.824.11)

29.12%/27.82%

(3.982.01)

29.12%:27.04%

(L115.14) (1.160.81)
0.04 236.49

1.144.30 251.95
0. - S
29. (
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23

24

Revenue from operations

Sale of services - Medical services
Sale of goods - Pharmacy goods

Disaggregated revenue information

March 31,2021

Mar 31,2020

g
17.973.69 44,466.49
7.485.00 7,163.78
55,458.69 51,630.27

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from contracts with customers by timing of transter of goods or services:

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue recognised over time
Revenue recognised at a point in time

Contract balances

Contract assets
Trade receivables
Contract assets

- Unbilled revenue

Contract liabilities
- Advance from customers
- Deferred Revenue

Trade recetvables are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of upto 30 days.

March 31,2021

March 31, 2020

T g
47,973.69 44.466.49
7.485.00 7.163.78
55458.69 51,630.27

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

g g
1,306.42 1,053.99
207 77 chten
1,600.0- 1,043.5/
819.12 702.26
2.06 2.01
821.18 704.27

Unbilled revenue pertains to transactions where performance obligation has been satisfied and contractual invoices have not been raised.
Contract liabilities include advances received from customers and deferred revenue representing transaction price allocated to unsatistied performance obligations.

The unsatistied performance obligations are expected to be recognised within one vear.

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in contract liability at the beginning of the period

Other income

Interest income on
Bank deposits
Income tax refund
Other tinancial assets at amortised cost
Net gain on sale of current investments
Fair value gain on investments at fair value through profit or loss
Profit on sale of property, plant & equipment
Liabilities no longer required written back
Rent concessions™
Other non-operating income

*Rent concessions represent concessions on rentals on account of COVID-19 (refer note 31).

Cost of Pharmacy goods consumed*

Inventory at the beginning of the vear
Add: Purchases during the vear

Less: Inventory at the end of the vear

704.27

809.94

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

k4 k4
57.97 65.52
9811 0.82
157.13 107.22
17.87 71.65
421 0.57
- 19.36
149.61 173.40
428.05 -
350.78 52928
___1,263.75 967.82
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
k4 k4
1,154.13 593.94
732291 7.336.90
8,477.06 7,930.84
(808.76) (1,154.15)
7,668.30 6,776.69

*[t 1s not practicable to furnish details of pharmacy goods inventories and consumption under broad heads in view of large number of items and each not being

signiticant.
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25 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Share based pavments expense (refer note 34)
Staff welfare expenses

26 Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 3)
Depreciation of right of use assets (note 3)
Amortization of intangible assets (note 5)

27 Finance costs

Interest

on borrowings from banks

on borrowings from financial institutions

on lease liability (refer note 31)

on other tinancial liabilitics at amortised cost
Other charges

28 Other expenses

Rent (refer note 31)
Power and fuel
Laboratory and radiology expenses
Consumable costs
Housekeeping expenses
Food and beverages
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance

Plant and machinery

Buildings

Others
Doctor's professional fees
Advertising and sales promotion
Brokerage and commission
Travelling and conveyance
Communication costs
Printing and stationery
Legal and professional fees
Photo expenses
Pavment to auditors *
Provision for doubtful debts
Bad debts written off
Loss on disposal of asset
Capital work in progress written off
Software expenses
Security expenses
Donation
Miscellaneous expenses

*Payment to auditors (excluding goods and services tax):

As auditors:
Statutory audit fee for standalone financial statements
Statutory audit fee for consolidated financial statements
Fee for audit of intemnal controls over financial reporting

Reimbursement of expenses S

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

z g
10,092.10 9,105.66
852.94 759 44
108.37 108.91
162.19 134.74
11,215.60 10,108.75

March 31, 2021

PREMAVRVIY

March 31, 2020

T

442531 4.062.04
69.26 67.34
7,891.25 7,373.43

March 31, 2021

March 31,2020

z z
432.86 503.51
3846 63.85
3,969.58 3,752.03
16.07 16.25
385.06 428.78
4,842.03 4,764.41
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
z z
9143 10253
1,269.45 1.243.31
1.052.18 1.007.81
2.091.59 1,533.48
1,592.82 1,542.60
699.66 563.58
75.80 151.89
82.20 68.75
417.00 345.75
427.14 372.17
127.89 87.63
16,775.74 16,373.26
470.78 779.91
59.77 38.00
167.38 280.87
34113 312.40
304.71 322.89
865.60 524,09
282,88 253.22
40.15 39.70
60.07 105.90
14.48 4.95
3152 .

- 210.00
610.37 482.82
541.07 484.75

- 0.90
436.54 323.66

28,929.37 27,556.82

March 31, 2021

March 31,2020

z z
30.00 29.50
7.00 7.00
3.00 3.00
0.15 0.20
40.15 39
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Earnings/(Loss) per share (' ) March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
- k4

Profit/(Loss) after tax attributable to equity shareholders (A} (3,895.53) (3.331.19)

Weighted average number ot equity shares for basic EPS (No. in lakhs)

a) Wetghted average number ot equity shares (refer note-2 below) 65.94 65.94
b) Weighted average number of equity shares to be issued upon conversion

of mandatorily convertible instrument

- NCCCPS (also refer note [4) 145,77 145.77
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (No. in lakhs) 211.71 211.71
Efttect of dilution (refer note-1 below) - -
W eng_hted average no. of equity shares adjusted for the effect of diluti ®) 2L71 2171
(No. in lakhs) —_—
Nominal value of shares (%) 10.00 10.00
Basic and Diluted EPS (Z) (C)=A/B (18.40) (15.73)
Notes:

1) For the purpose of computation of diluted EPS, the effect of partly paid shares, ESOP and ASOP have not been given as the effect is anti-dilutive and the
impact of NCCCPS, being a mandatorily convertible instrument, is not required to be considered for dilution purposes as the same has been included in the
computation of basic EPS,

2) With respect to partly paid shares issued during the vear, since there are no dividend rights till such time that such shares remain partly paid-up, the same
have not been considered for calculation of basic EPS.

Commitments and contingencies March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
T T

a. Commitments

(1) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, net of capital 1,201.21 62943
advances and not provided tor

(i1) With regards to the commitments under NCCCPS agreement, refer note 14(c).

b. Contingent HLiabilities

(i) Contingent liability towards pending litigations related to disputed dues of’
- Income tax matters 102.89 151.69
- Value added tax/Service tax matters 49.63 -
- Customer related matters 1,705.28 662.90

(it} The Group has taken Bank Guarantees of ¥ 4.40 lakhs (March 31, 2020: ¥ 4.90 lakhs) against fixed deposits in the favour of various government
authorities.

(iri) The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential
assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been
notified and the final rules/interpretation have not vet been issued. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record
anv related impact in the pertod the Code becomes effective.
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31 Leases

A. Transition to Ind AS 116

1. Effect of adoption of new accounting standard on Leases: Ind AS 11¢

The Group had adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases™ and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on April 01, 2019 using the modified retrospective method
prescribed in para C8(b)(ii) of Ind AS 116 to ongoing leases as on April 01, 2019. The standard was applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
initially applying the standard recognised at the date of mitial application. In the context of initial application, the Group had exercised the option — not to
apply the new recognition requirements to short-term leases and to leases of low-value asset.

As at Aprii 01, 2019, upon the adoption of Ind AS 116, the recognition of right of use asset (ROU) has been determined after deducting the below mentioned
balances as at March 31, 2019 under Ind AS 17, and the amount of lease liability has been determined in accordance with Ind AS 116,

2. ROU asset as at April 01, 2019

ROU asset as at April 1, 2019 ERRVyE
Less: Adjustment of balances as at March 31, 2019 under Ind AS 17:

a) Lease equalisation reserve (1,781.35)

b) Deferred rent expenditure 1,325, 10

b) Prepaid lease related expenses 9721 (359.04)
ROT Asset due to initial application of Ind AS 116 as at April 01, 201¢ 31,715.68

3. Lease liability as at April 01, 2019

Lease Liability

Operating lease obligations (gross before discounting) 55,104.25
Less:- Effect of discounting at the incremental borrowing rate (23,029.53)
Lease liabilities due to initial application of Ind AS 116 as at April 01, 2019 32,074.72

B. Group as Lessee

Set out below are the carrying amount of right-of-use assets recognised and movements during the period

Right-of-use Assets

Opening net carrving balance - As at March 31, 2020 27,793.70
Additions during the year
a) Amount of lease liabilities recognised 16,171.61
b) Initial direct costs incurred 205.77
c) Difference between the lease deposit paid and present value of lease deposit at the lease inception 917.39
Depreciation during the vear (442531)
Closing net carrying balance - As at March 31, 2021 40,663.16

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:

Lease liabilities

Adoption of Ind AS 116 Leases - As at April 01, 2016 32,074.72
Accretion of interest 3.752.03
Payments (5,574.87)
Closing balance - As at March 31, 2020 30,251.88
Additions during the vear 16,171.61
Less: Concession on rentals on account of COVID-19 (428.05)
Accretion of interest 3,969.58
Payments (5.507.30)
Closing balance - As at March 31, 2021 44,457.52
Statement of profit and loss March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Depreciation expense of right-ot-use assets 442531 4,062.04
Interest expense on lease liability 3,969.58 3,752.03
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses under rent) 91.45 102.53
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 8,486.34 7,916.60
Statement of cash flows March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Cash outtlow tor leases - towards principal 1,993.16 1,822 .84
Cash outtlow for leases - towards interest 351434 3.752.03

The lease liabilities are discounted using 12%, which is the incremental borrowing rate of the Group.

C. Group as lessor

The Group has subleased office space under cancellable operating lease agreements that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of both the lessor and
lessee:

Particu March . March 31,2020

Lease rentars 1ccogmsed as an iNCOME I tus swusinent vt prot anu was uuast other income VLo 81.07
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lated party disclosures

A)N of related narties and related party relationship

Relawcu parties unuci 1ua AS 24 with whom transactions have taken placc uvuiing e yvar

Enterprises owned or significantly intluenced by True North Managers LLP

shareholders (True North Fund V LLP) True North Enterprise Private Limited

Kev management personnel (' KMP") Mr. Rohit MA. Managing Director

of the Holding Company Mr. Akash Malik, Chief Executive Officer (CEQ') and Director (upto May 31, 2019)

Mr. Raviganesh Venkataraman, CEO and Director (from April 17, 2019)

Dr. R Kishore Kumar, Director

Key management personnel (KMP") Dr. Akash N, Managing Director (w.e.f. May 23, 2019)
of the Subsidiary Company Dr. Bhanumathi Akash, Director

Dr. R Kishore Kumar. Director

Mr. Raviganesh Venkataraman, Director (from May 23, 2019)
Mr. Sandeep Bardia, Director (w.e.f. Nov 28, 2019)

Mr. Akash Malik. Director (upto May 23, 2019)

Relatives of KMP Mrs. Vidya Kumar, wife of Dr. R Kishore Kumar Director
Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key Suburban Diagnostics Private Limncu yupto Jury 2o, 2019)
management personnel or their relatives ANI Technologies Private Limited

Cloudnine Foundation

Additional related parties as per Companies Act, 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Chief financial ofticer Mr Sandeep Bardia. Chiet Financial Otticer (from June 6, 2019)

Company Secretary Mr. Madhusudhan P

B) Related party transactions

a. Sale/ purchase of goods and services and receivables/payables thereon

Reimbursement
Laboratory and )
. . Doctor's of expenses to/
Year ended radiology .
- professional fees (from)
expenses

related party

Other expenses

Amount
payable to/
{receivable from)
related parties

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by shareholders (True North Fund V LLP)

True North Managers LLP March 31, 2021 - - 29.57
March 31, 2020 - - 73.12
True North Enterprise Private Limited March 31, 2021 - - 297

March 31, 2020 - - -

Kev managerial personnel / otticers of the Group or their relatives

Dr. R Kishore Kumar, Director March 31, 2021 - 4134 0.11
March 31, 2020 - 62.99 1.92
Mr. Rohit MA, Managing Director March 31, 2021 - - 0.02
March 31, 2020 - - 0.16
Mr. Akash Malik, CEO and Director March 31, 2021 - - -
March 31, 2020 - - 0.70
Mr. Raviganesh Venkataraman, CEO and Director March 31, 2021 - - 0.02
March 31, 2020 - - 0.31
Mr. Sandeep Bardia, Chief Financial Officer March 31, 2021 - - 0.06
March 31, 2020 - - 130
Dr. Akash N, Director of Acquity March 31, 202t - - 141
March 31, 2020 - - 1.40
Dr. Bhanumathi Akash, Director of Acquity March 31, 2021 - - 1.25
March 31, 2020 - - 1.61

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management personnel or their relatives

Suburban Diagnostics Private Limited March 31, 2021 - - -
March 31, 2020 21585 - -

ANT Technologies Private Limited March 31, 2021 - - -
March 31, 2020 - - -

Cloudnine Foundation March 31, 2021 - - (10.32

March 31, 2020 - - -

0.30
4.97

(0.47)
2.52

2.78

0.08

0.01

2
o8]
L

(0.07)
(0.37)

(10.32)
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b. Loans taken and rep

unt owed to

Year ended Opening Balance  Loans taken Repayment .
- the related parties
Key management personnel
Dr. Akash N, Director March 31, 2021 16.00 - - 16.00
(refer note 16) March 31, 2020 16.00 - - 16.00
Dr. Bhanumathi Akash, Director March 31,2021 - 10.00 10.00 -

March 31, 2020 - - - .

c. Remuneration to key managerial personnel / officers of the Group or their relatives*

March 31,2021 Maaicu 31, 2020

Dr R Kishore Kumar, Director 117.61 129.60
Mr. Rohit M A, Managing Director 117.73 12951
Mrs. Vidva Kumar, wife of Dr. R Kishore Kumar, Director 17.66 17.69
Mr. Akash Malik, CEO and Director - 97.38
Mr. Raviganesh Venkataraman, CEO and Director 231.83 160.70
Mr Sandeep Bardia, Chief Financial Officer 125.02 85.19
Dr. Akash N, Director 3235 28.77
Dr. Bhanumathi Akash, Director 26.20 2317
Mr. Madhusudhan P, Company Secretary 19.57 18.25
Total 688.18 690.26

* The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an actuarial basis for

the Group as a whole.

A Advancace aiven and rernvery tharanf

. . . ., Amount oweu vy
Year ended Opening Balance Advances given Advances repaid .
g related parties

Key management personnel
Dr. Akash N, Director March 31, 2021 - 1.50 1.50 -
March 31, 2020 - - - -

Dr. Bhanumathi Akash, Director March 31, 2021 - 2.00 2.00 -
March 31, 2020 - - - -

() Other information

In respect of the transactions with the related parties, the Holding company and its subsidiary have complied with the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
where applicable, and the details have been disclosed above, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of Section 177 ot the Companies Act, 2013
are not applicable to the Holding company and its subsidiary.
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33 Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The Group operates defined gratuity plan for its employees. Under the plan, every employee who has completed at least two years of service gets a gratuity on departure at
15 days of last drawn salary for each completed vear of service

The scheme is funded with an insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

The following tables summarise the components of net benetit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amount recognised in the
balance sheet.

Changes in the defined benefit obligation ('DBO') and fair value of plan assets ('FVoPA') - Year ended March 31,2021

Expense charged to profit/loss Remeasurement (gains)/losses in OCI
Retl::n on Actuarial | Actuarial
an
P changes | changes
assets arising | arising Contri-
_ April 01, | Current | | €U | Sub-totall b ofies | (exclud- | o from  bxperi- fSub-totall e |Mareh 31,
Gratuity L interest | included . ing . ence iucluded
2020 Service . . paid changes in| changes . . by 2021
expense /| in profit amount, L adjust- in
cost . . demo- in . employer
(income) | or loss inchudec ) . . ments OCI
- graphic | financial
in net assump- | assump-
interest . P . P
tions tions
expense)
DBO 638.09 224.02 42.99 267.01 (79.77) - 3.98 2392 (48.82) (20.92) - 804.41
FVoPA (162.36) - (10.93) {10.93) 79.77 7.23 - - - 7.23 (100.00)] (186.29)
Net liability - Gratuity 47573 224.02 32.06 256.08 - 7.23 3.98 23.92 (48.82) (13.69)] (100.00)| 618.12

Changes in the defined benefit obligation (' DBO') and fair value of plan assets (FVoPA') - Year ended March 31, 2020

Expense charged to profit/loss Remeasurement (gains)/losses in OCI
Return on Actuarial { Actuarial
plan
changes | changes
assets arisiﬁg arising Contri-
, April 01, , Net | Sub-toall g gieg | (exClud- | from | TXPeri- [ Sub-totall oo |March 31,
Gratuity Service | . included . ing . ence included
2019 interest | . ) paid changes in| changes . ) by 2020
cost in profit amounts i . adjust- in
expense . demo- in . employer
or loss included . . . ments 0ClI
. graphic { financial
in net
. assump- | assump-
interest . .
tions tions
expense
DBO 502.55 186.30 38.73 22503 | (104.28) (1.00) 46.51 (30.72) 14.79 - 638.09
FVoPA (165.80) - (12.74) (12.74)1 10428 11.90 | . - - 1190 | (100.00)] (162.36)
Net liabilitv - Gratuity 336.75 186.30 25.99 212.29 - 11.90 | LL.uy) 46.51 (30.72) 26.69 [ (100.00)] 475.73

The major categories ~*~'~-1 agsets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Fund Managed by Insurer 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining pension and post-employment benefit obligations for the Group’s plans are shown below:

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Discount rate 6.70% 6.75%
Future salarv 1 e l 8.15% 8.00%

The estimate o1 wuwre salary increase considered in actuarial valuation takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and
demand in the employment market. The change in discount rate is due to change in market scenarios.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption for Gratuity plan is as shown below:

Particulars March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Assumptions Discount Rate Future Salary Inc. Discount Rate Future Salary Inc.
Sensitivity Level -1% 1% -1% 1% -1% 1% -1% 1%
Impact on defined benefit obligation - Grawuuy 161.55] (102.36)1 {9697y 151.22 113.06 (90.49) (86.71) 105.18
% change compared to base due to sensitivity 20.08%]}  -12.73%] -12.006% 18.80% 17.72%| (14.18%)] (13.59%) 16.48%

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The tollowing pavments are expected contributions to Insurance fund towards gratuity plan:

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Within next 0-1 vear 604.39 466.24
Within next 1-2 vears 13.73 9.49
Total expected pavments 618.12 475.73
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34 Share based payment

t he Holding Company provides share-based paviment schemes to its employees. The Holding Company has adopted the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India w.e.f April 1, 2013 for accounting of Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP') scheme.

(i) Employee Stock Option Plan ('ESOP')*

On April 1, 2013, the compensation committee, appointed by the Board ot Directors approved the equity settled "KCIPL ESOP 2013"for issue of stock options to various
employvees (including kev employees) of the Holding Company. According to the scheme, the employees will be entitled to options, subject to satisfaction of the prescribed
vesting conditions, i.e., continued employment with the Holding Company and on the basis of performance. There would be graded vesting on monthly basis for next 60
months {for time based vesting) and annual vesting for 5 years (for performance based vesting). The contractual life (comprising the vesting period and the exercise period) of
options granted is 12 years from date ot such grant. The other relevant terms of the grant are as below:

Vesting period 5 years

Grant date Various

Exercise period 7 years from the date of vesting
Expected life Upto 12 vears trom the date ot grant
Exercise price T 159.80,%325.86,3575.70,%3456. % 10

The fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using Black Scholes Model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the share options are
granted and there are no cash settled alternatives for employees.

* There were no cancellations or moditications to the plan during the current and previous years.

Expense recognised for employee services received during the year: March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
k4 4
Expense arising from equity settled share based payment transactions (net of reversals on account of forfeitures) A ‘837 T

Movements during the year

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise price of share options during the vear

Details of activity under the Scheme: March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
No. of options WAEP* No. of options WAEP*
(lakhs) k4 (lakhs) k4

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 443,659 354.25 3,23.330 389.93
Add: Granted during the year 24,195 575.70 1,89,189 423.29
Less: Forfeited and lapsed during the vear 37.620 497.23 68,860 575.70
Less: Exercised during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 4,30,234 373.74 4,43,659 354.25
Exercisable at the end of the year 2,35.449 315.77 2.18,381 258.44

*Weighted Average Exercise Price

(1) Associate Stock Option Plan ('ASOP")

On April 1, 2013, the compensation committee, appointed by the Board of Directors approved the equity settled "KCIPL ASOP 2013 for issue of stock options to various
assoclates/consultants of the Holding Company. According to the scheme, the associates/consultants will be entitled to options, subject to satisfaction of the preseribed vesting
conditions, 1.e., continued association with the Holding Company and graded vesting on annual basis for 3 years. The contractual life {comprising the vesting period and the
exercise period) of options granted 13 12 years from date of such grant. The other relevant terms of the grant are as below:

Vesting period 5 years

Grant date Aprl 1, 2013

Exercise pertod 7 years trom the date of vesting
Expected life Upto 12 years from the date of grant
Exercise price T159.86

Movements during the year
The following table iltustrates the number and weighted average exercise price of share options during the vear

Details of activity under the Scheme: March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
No. of options WAEP* No. of options WAEP*
(lakhs) kS (lakhs) kS
Outstanding at the beginning of the vear 1,10.800 159.86 1,10.800 159.86

Add: Granted during the vear - - - -

Less: Forteited and lapsed during the year - - - R

Less: Exercised during the year - - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year 1,10,800 159.86 1,10,800 159.86

Exercisable at the end ot the year 1,10,800 159.86 1,10.800 159.86
*Weighted Average Exercise Price

The Black Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering the following inputs:

] O March 31, 2020
Dividend vield (%) N Nil
Expected volatility (%) 30.00% 30.00%
Risk-free interest rate (°o) 4.45% - 5.49% 6.39%0 - 7.42%
Weighted average share price (%) 391.20 390.00
Exercise price (%) 575.70 423.29
Expected life of the options granted (in vears) (vesting & exercise period) Upto 12 vears Upto 12 vears

The expected life of the stock 15 based on historical data and current expectations and s not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility

o1 P

reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the lite of the options is indicative of future trends, which may also not nece -

outcome,
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Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
4 4
The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier 9.56 14.03
The amount of interest due and remaining unpaid to any supplier - -
The amount of interest paid by the Group along with the amount of the payments made to the supplier bevond the - -
appointed day.
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but bevond - -
the appointed day during the vear)
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year. - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable for the earlier years. - -
9.56 14.03
Note: The above-mentioned disclosure has been made based on the information available with the Group.
Fair value measurements
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a torced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
- The management has measured the investments in mutual funds at fair value through profit and loss, which are valued using the quoted market prices in active
markets for identical investments.
> The management assessed that the carrying values of cash and bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, and other financial assets and liabilities approximate
their fair values largely due to their short-term maturities.
 The management assessed that the carrying values of bank deposits, borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values based on cash
flow discounting using parameters such as interest rates, tenure of instrument, credit worthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of the financed project, as
applicable.
All the tinancial assets and liabilities (except for Current Investments classified as level 1 as explained above) are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value
hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs as explained above. There have been no transfers between levels during the vear.
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrving amounts and fair value of the Groups financial instruments:
3
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
_ Value (Level 1) Ya’ (Level 1)
riallCian Axcwy
Measured at fair value through profit and loss
Current Investments - Investment in mutual funds 604.75 604.75 150.59 150.59
k4
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
Value (Level 3) Value (Level 3)
Financial Assets
Measured at umortised cost
Loans 227043 2,270.43 1.882.40 1,882.40
Trade receivables 1,306.42 1,306.42 1,053.99 1,053.99
Cash and cash equivalents 506.96 506.96 307.84 307.84
Other financial assets 1,375.25 1,375.25 1.421.06 1.421.06
Financial Liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 3,699.86 3,699.8¢ 4,254.10 4,234.10
Trade payables 4,984.57 4,984.57 3,980.39 3.980.39
Other financial liabilities 46,255.05 46,255.05 32,194.55 32,194.55
Capital management
The Group’s objectives of capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the return
to shareholders. issue/ buyback shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt as below.
- Equity includes equity share capital and all other equity components attributable to the equity holders
- Net debt includes borrowings, trade payables and other tinancial liabilities, less cash & cash equivalents
4
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Borrowings 3,699.86 423410
Trade payables 4,984.57 3,980.39
Other financial liabilities 46,255.05 32,194.55
54,939.48 40.409.04
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (506.96) (307.84)
Net Debt (A) 54,432.52 | et an
Equity share capital 661.86 639.39
Instruments entirely equity in nature 6.738.41 6,738.41
Other equity 12,415.59 15,726.36
Equity (B) 19.815.86 23,124.16
Equity plus net debt (C=A+B) 74,248.38 28
Gearing ratio (D=A/C) 73% 6oy

In order to achieve the objective of maximize shareholders value. the Grc s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing borrowings that detine capital struciure requirements. Any significant breach in meeting the financial covenant:
the bank to call borrowings. There have beer no breaches in the financial covenants of above-mentioned interest-bearing borrowings.
No changes were made in the ob)ccti\'ffx;, policies or proces\‘s\es tor managing capital during the current and previous years.
G : .
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principle financial liabilities comprise borrowings, lease liabilities, trade and other pavables. The main purpose ot these financial habilities is to
finance the Group’s operations. The Group's principal financial assets include loans, trade, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive

directly from its operations.

The Ciroup 1s exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s management oversees the management of these risks and ensures that the
Group’s financial nisk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have
the appropriate skills, experience and supervision and are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments.

i. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the tair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020. The sensitivity analvsis has been prepared
on the basis that the amount of net debt and the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt. The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market
variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other long-term benefit obligations.

The below assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and
financial liabilities held as at the balance sheet date.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash tlows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in interest rate. The entity’s exposure to
the risk of changes in interest rates relates primartly to the entity’s operating activities (when receivables or pavables are subject to different interest rates)
and the entity’s net receivables or pavables.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the
Group’s protit/(loss) before tax is due to changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities.

Change i Effect of
Particulars L gemn profit/(loss) before
interest rate tax
March 31, 2021 +1% (55.35)
-1% 55.35
March 31, 2020 +1% (46.68)
-1% 46.68

ii. Credit risk

Credit risk 15 the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments if a counterparty default on its obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk arises majorly from trade receivables/ unbilled revenue and other financial assets.

Other financial assets are bank deposits with banks and hence, the Group does not expect any credit risk with respect to these financial assets.

With respect to other financial assets, the Group has constituted teams to review the receivables on periodic basis and to take necessary mitigations, wherever
required. The Group creates allowance for all unsecured receivables based on lifetime expected credit loss. At the balance sheet date, there was no significant
concentration of credit risk and exposure thereon.

iii. Liquidity risk
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and tlexibility through the use of horrowings and lease contracts. The table
below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted pavments.

g
Particulars Maturity period March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Financial labilities - current
Borrowings On demand [68.84 661.97
Trade payables Within 1 year 4.984.57 3,980.39
Other financial liabilities Within ] year 4.827.68 4.033.22
Financial liabilities - non-current
Borrowings Between -5 years 3.531.02 3,572.13
Other financial liabilities Between 1-135 vears 4142737 28.161.33

Unhedged foreign currency exposure

Net foreign currency exposure of the Group as at March 31, 2021: ¥ 36.85 lakhs (March 31, 2020: € 10.02 lakhs).
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46 Financial information of the subsidiary

The consolidated financial statements of the Group includes the following subsidiary:

Y Equity Interest

Name of the subsidiary entity March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Acquity Labs Private Limited
% Equity Interest held by the Group 51.00% 51.00%
% Equity Interest held by the non-controlling interests 49.00% 49.00%
100.00% 100.00%

Financial information of subsidiary that have non-controlling interests:

(i) Summary of assets and liabilities Masen 31,2021 March 31, 2020
I Z
Current assets 51523 164.34
Non-current assets 586.52 320.57
Current liabilities (579.22) (196.48)
Non-current liabilities {190.36) (42.06)
Total Equity 332.17 246.37
Total Equity attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 169.46 125.70
Non-Controlling Interests 162.7t 120.67
332.17 246.37
(ii) Summary of profit and loss March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
I z
Total Income 1,462.64 70823
Total Expenses 1,343.41 647.93
Protit betore tax 119.23 60.30
Profit for the year 85.86 43.45
Total comprehensive income 85.81 43.30
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 43.77 22.08
Non-Controlling Interests 42.04 21.22
§5.81 43.30
(iii) Summary of cash flows March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
k4 Z
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities 162.61 45.96
Net cash tlow from/(used in) investing activities (275.96) (76.57)
Net cash flow from/(used in} financing activities 94.12 (26.67)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) during the year ey (57.28)
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41  Statutory Group Information

sets (¢ ties)
aaion vy <020
As a % of As a % of
N f th ity
ame of the entity consolidated Amount consolidated Amount
net assets net assets
Holding Company
Kids Clinic India Private Limited 98.32% 19 495.03 98.94% 22,889.14
Subsidiary
Acquity Labs Private Limited 1.68% 332,18 1.06% 746,37
Sub-total 100.00'% 19,827.21 100.00%, 2 5.51
Less: Non-controlling interest in subsidiary
Acquity Labs Private Limited (162.71) (120.67)
Adjustment arising on consolidation, net (11.35) (11.35)
Total 19,653.15 23,003.49
Z
Share in total comprehensive income for the vear ended March 31, 2021
As %
As . of As % of
Asa % of consolidated consolidated total
Name of the entity consolidated Amount other Amount R Amount
. . comprehensive
profit or loss comprehensive .
. income
income
Holding Company
Kids Clinic India Private Limited 102.23% (3,939.33) 100.62% 9.75 102.23% (3,929.58)
Subsidiary
Acquity Labs Private Limited (2.23%) 85.87 (0.62%) (0.06) (2.23%) 85.81
Sub-total 100.00% (3,853.46) 100.00% 9.69 100.00% (3.843.77)
Less: Non-controlling interest in subsidiary
Acquity Labs Private Limited (42.07) 0.03 (42.04)
Adjustment arising on consolidation, net - - -
Total (3,895.53) 9.72 (3,885.81)
k4
Share in total comprehensive income for the vear ended March 31, 2020 I
As Yo of As % of '
Asa % of consolidated ‘onsoli(la't.e(l total
Name of the entity consolidated Amount other Amount . Amount
. . comprehensive
profit or loss comprehensive .
. income 1
income
Holding Company
Kids Clinic India Private Limited 101.31% (3.353.35) 99.21% (18.78) 101.30¢ (3.372.12,
Subsidiary
Acquity Labs Private Limited (1.31%) 43.45 0.79% (0.15) (1.30%) 43.30
Sub-total 100.00% (3,309.90) 100.00%, (18.93) 100.00% (3,328.8
Less: Non-controlling interest in subsidiary
Acquity Labs Private Limited (21.29) 0.07 (21.22)
Adjustment arising on consolidation, net - - -
Total (3,331.19) (18.86) (3,350.05)
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42 Standards issued but not vet effective

As at March 31, 2021, there are no standards that have been issued but are not yet effective, which will impact the Group's financial statements.
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